
Damien McCann, 
Interim Chief Executive / Prif Weithredwr Interim 

T: 01495 355100 

E: committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Ref./Ein Cyf. 
Your Ref./Eich Cyf. 
Contact:/Cysylltwch â: Mrs Leeann Turner 

 

Mae’r Cyngor yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg a Saesneg a byddwn yn cyfathrebu gyda chi yn eich dewis iaith, dim 

ond i chi rhoi gwybod i ni pa un sydd well gennych. Ni fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn creu unrhyw oedi. 

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh and English and we will communicate with you in the language of your 

choice, as long as you let us know which you prefer. Corresponding in Welsh will not lead to any delay. 

 
General Offices 

Steelworks Road 

Tyllwyn, Ebbw 

Vale NP23 6DN 

 

Swyddfeydd Cyffredinol 

Heol Gwaith Dur 

Tŷ Llwyn, Glyn Ebwy 

NP23 6DN 

 

 

 
 

THIS IS A MEETING WHICH THE PUBLIC ARE ENTITLED TO ATTEND 

 
11th January 2023 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
STATUTORY LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Statutory Licensing Committee will be held Via MS Teams (if 
you would like to view this meeting please contact 
committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk) on Monday, 16th January, 2023 
at 10.30 am. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Damien McCann 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
AGENDA Pages 
 
1.   SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION 

 
 

 You are welcome to use welsh at the meeting a 
minimum notice period of 3 working days is required 
should you wish to do so.  A simultaneous translation 
will be provided if requested. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk


 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AND 
DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interests and 
dispensations. 
 

 

4.   STATUTORY LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

3 - 4 

 To consider the decisions of the Statutory Licensing 
Sub-Committee held on 27th October, 2022. 
 

 

5.   STATUTORY LICENCE FEES 2023/24 
 

5 - 14 

 To consider the report of the Team Manager – Trading 
Standards and Licensing. 
 

 

To:  Councillor L. Winnett (Chair) 
Councillor D. Bevan (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor G. Thomas 
Councillor S. Behr 
Councillor D. Woods 
Councillor M. Cross 
Councillor G. A. Davies 
Councillor J. Gardner 
Councillor L. Parsons 
Councillor G. Humphreys 
Councillor D. Rowberry 
 

 All other Members (for information) 
Interim Chief Executive 
Chief Officers 
 

 

Page 2



COUNTY BOROUGH OF BLAENAU GWENT 
 
REPORT TO: THE CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF THE STATUTORY 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
  
SUBJECT STATUTORY LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE –  

27TH OCTOBER, 2022 
 

REPORT OF: DEMOCRATIC & COMMITTEE SUPPORT OFFICER 
_________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Councillor L. WINNETT (CHAIR) 
 

Councillor M. Cross 
           
WITH:  Team Manager – Trading Standards and Licensing  
   Senior Licensing Officer 

Licensing Enforcement Officer    
Licensing Officer    

   Specialist Environmental Health Officer 
   Solicitor 
 
AND:   Joanna Box – Objector  
 

DECISIONS UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
 
 

 
ITEM 

 
SUBJECT 
 

 
ACTION 

No. 1 SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION 
 
It was noted that no requests had been received for the 
simultaneous translation service. 
 

 

No. 2 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D. 
Rowberry. 
 

 

No. 3 DECLARATIONS OF  
INTEREST AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



No declarations of interest and dispensations were 
received. 
 

No. 4 LICENSING ACT 2003 – REVIEW OF PREMISES 
LICENCE, THE BADMINTON, BEAUFORT TERRACE, 
EBBW VALE, GWENT. NP23 5NN 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Senior 
Licensing Officer. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be accepted and the Sub-
Committee considered the written representations for the 
application for the review of premises licence for The 
Badminton, Beaufort Terrace, Ebbw Vale as presented in 
the Officer’s report, together with the oral representations 
given at the hearing by the objector and the following 
decision was agreed:- 
 
To take no action but be warned in relation to future 
conduct and that the new DPS and Premises License 
Holder should ensure that the Conditions attached to the 
Licence were adhered to. 
 
Right to Appeal 
 
All parties have the right to appeal to the Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days of receipt of this decision.  Any 
responsible authority or other person had the right to 
request a review of the Licence. 
 

 

 
 

Page 4



Executive Committee and Council only 
Date signed off by the Monitoring Officer: 
Date signed off by the Section 151 Officer:  

 

Committee: Statutory Licensing Committee 

 

Date of meeting:   16th January 2023 

 

 

Report Subject:     Statutory Licence Fees 2023/24 

 

 

Portfolio Holder:     Statutory Licensing Committee 

 

 

Report Submitted by: David Thompson, Service Manager – Public 

Protection 

 

 

Report Written by:       Steve Osborne, Team Manager – Trading 

Standards and Licensing 

 

 

 

Reporting Pathway 
Directorate 

Management 

Team 

Corporate 

Leadership 

Team 

Portfolio 

Holder / 

Chair 

Audit 

Committee 

Democratic 

Services 

Committee 

Scrutiny 

Committee 

Executive 

Committee 

Council Statutory 

Licensing 

Committee 

13.12.22 15.12.22       16.1.23 

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

  

1.1 To agree Gambling Licence Fees and Fees for Hypnosis and Films for the 

year 2023/24 which fall to the Statutory Licencing Committee for 

consideration in accordance with the Council’s Constitution.    

  

2. Scope and Background 

  
2.1 Members will be acutely aware of the pressures placed upon businesses in 

recent years. In these difficult and challenging times for both businesses and 

the wider public and having regard to the budget setting cycle, the Corporate 

Leadership Team (CLT) have been consulted and propose that the fees for 

Gambling Licences, as outlined in this report, should remain unchanged at 

this time.  

  
2.2 Additionally, no changes are proposed for Hypnosis or Film fees and the 

Authority currently has no licences issued in these categories.  

  
2.3 The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 

2007 provides for the following types of fees to be determined by licensing 
authorities: 
 
• Licence application fee 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



  
 

  

• First annual fee 
• Annual fee 
• Notification of change of circumstances fee 
• Application to vary a licence fee 

• Application to transfer a licence fee 
• Fee for a copy of a licence 
• Application for re-instatement of a licence fee 
• Provisional statement application fee. 
 
These Regulations stipulate a maximum figure that a local authority is 
permitted to charge for the licensing of premises under the Gambling Act 
2005. Local authorities are permitted to charge a fee based on reasonable 
cost recovery up to this maximum, but not above. Where the costs of the 
authority exceed the amount they are able to charge, this cost must be borne 
by the Authority.  
 
The maximum license fees that we are permitted to charge are shown in 
column 5 of Table 1 in Appendix 1. 

  
2.4 The Authority currently licences the following premises under the Gambling 

Act 2005,  
 
Alcohol Licence Notification of Machines – 66 
Alcohol Licence Permit – 4 
Club Machine Permit – 14 
Betting Office – 9 
Adult Gaming Centre – 3 
 
Fees for Alcohol Licence Notifications and Permits, and Club Machine 
Permits are determined by Government, and do not therefore form part of this 
report.  
 
The current licence fees are shown in column 6 of Table 1 - Appendix 1 

  
2.5 When calculating new licence fee costs, there is a range of legislation and 

guidance around fee setting for local authorities that must be taken into 
account. These include: 
 

1. The Provision of Services Regulations, which states that any charges 
provided for by a competent authority which applicants may incur 
under an authorisation scheme must be reasonable and proportionate 
to the cost of the procedures and formalities under the scheme and 
must not exceed the cost of those procedures and formalities. 
 

2. Local Government Association guidance on locally set fees, and the 
Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy Guidance for 
Business on the Provision of Services Regulations. 
 

3. Appropriate case law – and in particular to Hemmings v Westminster 

Page 6



  
 

  

  
2.6 Local Authorities incur various direct and indirect costs in the administration 

and enforcement of licences, including: 
 
1 Implementation costs, including the costs of developing policies and 

setting fees, authorisation of officers, management of the licensing 
function etc.  

 
2 Direct staff costs, including on-costs, travel, staff training etc. and 

including the costs of any senior managers, licensing committees etc. 
directly involved in the licensing process. 

 
3 Indirect costs that support the licensing function, such as general 

management functions, Legal, HR, finance, customer call centres etc.   
 
4 Specialist equipment costs, particularly the use of specialist IT 

databases to record and report this work 
 
5 Any third party costs used for inspection and enforcement etc.  

  
2.7 A full assessment of licensing costs was undertaken in Autumn 2022 with a 

view to these being set for the financial year 23/24.  
In order to update these costs, the following steps have been taken: 
 
1 The licence steps and average time taken for each step, including the 

development of policies etc. have been reviewed for accuracy 
 
2 Other costs such as IT costs have been reviewed to ensure they 

remain relevant, and 
 
3 The officer hourly rate and on-costs etc. have been reviewed by the 
finance team 

  
2.8 Whilst some costs have fluctuated, with some increasing above the previous 

fee levels and some reducing slightly, if cost recovery calculations were 
implemented fully, the net effect would see just a relatively small increase in 
income of approximately £350 to the service which would be borne by the 
existing 12 licensees affected. Therefore, having regard to all of the above 
and the overall impact of the cost of living crisis, CLT recommend that the 
Gambling Fees remain unchanged from 2022/23 as shown in column 6 of 
Table 1 in Appendix 1. 

  
2.9 Following discussion with the Authority’s Resources Team, it is intended that 

the service should attempt to mitigate any cost pressures within the service 
area. The cost pressure will therefore be monitored during the financial year 
and funded from within existing resources where possible. 

  
2.10 For comparative purposes, the fees being charged by neighbouring 

authorities are shown in the columns 1 to 4 of Table 1 in Appendix 1. 
  

Page 7



  
 

  

2.11 A review of all fees will commence again in Autumn 2023 for the 24/25 
financial year, to bring this in line with budget setting cycle for next year. 

  
3. Options for Recommendation 

  

3.1 Members are asked to : 

 

1 Agree the proposed fees for Gambling Licences, Hypnosis and Films as 

per Appendix 1, (Preferred Option)  or 

 

2 Consider an alternative fee structure.  

  

4. Evidence of how does this topic supports the achievement of the 

Corporate Plan / Statutory Responsibilities / Blaenau Gwent Well-being 

Plan 

  

4.1 Links to the Corporate Plan and the Well-being plan are covered in any 

reports implementing or varying any area of work delivered by the Licensing 

Team, and there are therefore no direct links to this report. 

  

4.2 These fees relate to businesses, and form just a small part of the overall costs 

borne by those businesses. There are therefore no well-being implications.  

  

5. Implications Against Each Option  

  

5.1 

 

 

Budgetary implications – there is a balance to be reached between funding 

services in order to protect public safety, and supporting businesses and 

others who depend on licences for their livelihoods. 

  
5.2 In times of increasing local authority austerity, fees are an important element 

of local authority income. The proposed fees were set in March 2020 and 

were calculated based upon principles of cost recovery at that time. Any 

negative financial implication arising from this will be monitored during the 

financial year and funded from within existing resources were possible.  

Where a surplus arises, this will be factored in to future fee calculations 

  
5.3 Due to fee increases not being agreed in previous years, but the income 

budgets subject to inflationary increases (in line with the assumptions in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy), there is a net cost pressure on the 
Licensing Committee’s Income of £2,000 (As at 2nd Quarter) based on the 
forecasts of all for income 2022/23. The costings for the Licenses are 
prepared at a point in time. We anticipate an increase in direct costs post 
pandemic as services continue to recover to more pre-pandemic levels and 
this will be assessed in future cost-recovery analyses and considered in the 
next fee review 

Page 8



  
 

  

  

5.4 Reputational risk – The preferred option could give rise to criticism that fee 

levels have not fully recovered costs of the service. This needs to be balanced 

against  the unprecedented pressures on the trade and Authority during this 

global pandemic. 

  

5.5 Legal implications – this report refers to statutory powers and responsibilities 

of the authority and, providing legislative and statutory processes are followed 

and evidenced,  there should be no significant legal impacts arising. 

  

5.6 Resources – The global pandemic has placed the Authority under 

unprecedented pressures requiring flexibility from staff to help bolster the 

response to the pandemic while maintaining essential services such as taxi 

licensing. As the recovery continues during this turbulent economic period, it 

is recommended that fees are adopted as per Option 1 above. 

  

6. Supporting Evidence  

  

6.1 Supporting evidence to justify 2020/21 fee levels were considered when this 

fee was set at March 2020. No new evidence is put forward at this stage as 

no changes are proposed in this report. 

  
7. Monitoring Arrangements  

  

7.1 Any licence fees will be subject to annual review, reporting to the Licensing 

Committee as appropriate.  

  

 Background Documents /Electronic Links  

 Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57/section/65  

 

APPENDIX 1 - Fees for Gambling, Hypnosis and Film Classification 
2023/24 

 

 

Page 9

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57/section/65


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Statutory Licensing Committee January 2023  APPENDIX 1 – Fees 2023/24 
 

Gambling Fees 
 

 COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5 COLUMN 6 

Caerphilly 
2021/22 fees 

current 

Monmouth 
 

Torfaen 
2022/23 

Merthyr 
Current fee 

Maximum 
permitted 

fees 

BG current 
and proposed 

fee 2023/24 

APPLICATION FEE       

Bingo Premises Licence £680 £1655 £1686.42 £520 £3500 £446 

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence £680 £1343 £1701.52 £520 £2000 £446 

Betting Premises (Track) Licence £900 £2190 £1634.42 £520 £2500 £446 

Family Ent Centre Premise Licence £680 £1532 £1588.23 £520 £2000 £446 

Betting Premises (Other) Licence £680 £1715 £1659.90 £520 £3000 £446 

APPLICATION FEE WHERE PROVISIONAL 
STATEMENT PREVIOUSLY ISSUED 

      

Bingo Premises Licence £405 £1200 £1113.23 0 £1200 £440 

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence £405 £1200 £1087.03 0 £1200 £440 

Betting Premises (Track) Licence £564 £950 £950 0 £950 £440 

Family Ent Centre Premise Licence £405 £950 £950 0 £950 £440 

Betting Premises (Other) Licence £405 £1200 £1096.54 0 £1200 £440 

ANNUAL FEE       

Bingo Premises Licence £405 £1000 £819.16 £335 £1000 £255 

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence £405 £1000 £800.95 £335 £1000 £255 

Betting Premises (Track) Licence £564 £1000 £807.02 £335 £1000 £255 

Family Ent Centre Premise Licence £405 £750 £750 £335 £750 £255 

Betting Premises (Other) Licence £405 £600 £600 £335 £600 £255 

TRANSFER APPLICATION FEE       

Bingo Premises Licence £680 £1200 £963.17 £138 £1200 £379 

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence £680 £1200 £969.24 £138 £1200 £379 

Betting Premises (Track) Licence £564 £950 £950 £138 £950 £379 

Family Ent Centre Premise Licence £680 £950 £950 £138 £950 £379 

Betting Premises (Other) Licence £680 £1200 £972.14 £138 £1200 £379 

  

P
age 11



 

 

 COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5 COLUMN 6 

VARIATION APPLICATION FEE Caerphilly 
2021/22 fees 

current 

Monmouth 
 

Torfaen 
2022/23 

Merthyr 
Current fee 

Maximum 
permitted 

fees 

BG current 
and proposed 

fee 2023/24 

Bingo Premises Licence £680 £1617 £1125.90 £138 £1750 £440 

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence £680 £1000 £1000 £138 £1000 £440 

Betting Premises (Track) Licence £900 £1250 £1095.66 £138 £1250 £440 

Family Ent Centre Premise Licence £680 £1000 £1000 £138 £1000 £440 

Betting Premises (Other) Licence £680 £1500 £1109.21 £138 £1500 £440 

PROVISIONAL STATEMENT APPLICATION 
FEE 

      

Bingo Premises Licence £680 £1650 £1447.02 £520 £3500 £446 

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence £680 £1339 £1539.14 £520 £2000 £446 

Betting Premises (Track) Licence £900 £2187 £1440.95 £520 £2500 £446 

Family Ent Centre Premise Licence £680 £1529 £1450.32 £520 £2000 £446 

Betting Premises (Other) Licence £680 £1711 £1534.86 £520 £3000 £446 

APPLICATION FOR REINSTATEMENT FEE       

Bingo Premises Licence £680 £1200 £957.10 £138 £1200 £379 

Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence £680 £1200 £973.38 £138 £1200 £379 

Betting Premises (Track) Licence £564 £950 £950 £138 £950 £379 

Family Ent Centre Premise Licence £680 £950 £950 £138 £950 £379 

Betting Premises (Other) Licence £680 £1200 £958.90 £138 £1200 £379 

 

Hypnosis Fees 
 

 COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5 

Caerphilly 
2021/22 current 

Monmouth 
current 

 

Torfaen 
2022/23 

Merthyr 
current 

BGCBC 
Current and 

proposed fee 
2023/24 

APPLICATION FEE      

Application (Single Event) No fee charged No fee charged £261.50 N/A £40.30 

 
  

P
age 12



 

 

 

Film Classification Fees 
 

 COLUMN 1 COLUMN 2 COLUMN 3 COLUMN 4 COLUMN 5 

Caerphilly 
2021/22 current 

Monmouth 
 

Torfaen 
2022/23 

Merthyr 
current 

BGCBC current 
and proposed fee 

2023/24 

ACTIVITY TYPE      

Reclassification Application No fee charged No fee charged £279.16 N/A £372.23 

New Application (Unclassified) No fee charged No fee charged £417.85 N/A £276.53 

Copy of Licence No fee charged No fee charged N/A N/A £18.90 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
	5 Statutory Licence Fees 2023/24
	Appendix 1


